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Rocky Mountain Power, a division of PacifiCorp, (“Rocky Mountain Power” or the 

“Company”), hereby submits to the Public Service Commission of Utah (“Commission”) its 

proposal for the scope of the Phase II proceedings in the above-captioned docket. In support of 

its proposal, Rocky Mountain Power states as follows: 

1. On June 11, 2009, Rocky Mountain Power filed an advice letter with the Public 

Service Commission of Utah requesting an increase in Schedule 193 – Demand-Side 

Management Cost Adjustment (“DSM tariff rider”). The Company requested the current 

demand-side management (“DSM”) tariff rider be increased from an average of 2.1% to 6.16%. 

The requested increase is needed to: 1) retire the current balance in the demand-side management 

deferred account within 12 months; and 2) recover the actual and projected costs of ongoing 

Commission approved programs.   

2. On July 13, 2009, the Commission granted leave to intervene in this docket to the 



Utah Association of Energy Users (“UAE”), the Utah Industrial Energy Consumers (“UIEC”) 

and Utah Clean Energy. On August 5, 2009 and August 17, 2009, the same was granted to 

Western Resource Advocates and Southwest Energy Efficiency Project, respectively. 

 3. On July 14, 2009, the Parties met with Commission staff at a Scheduling and 

Technical Conference to discuss the scope of the proceeding and to establish a procedural 

schedule. At that meeting, the Parties agreed to bifurcate the proceeding to evaluate the 

Company’s immediate recovery of the balance in the demand-side management deferred account 

and ongoing DSM expenditures in Phase I of the proceeding, and defer all other issues to Phase 

II, the scope of which will be determined by the Commission at a later date.   

 4. As a result of settlement negotiations, the Parties reached a compromise on 

immediate cost recovery and certain other issues, and filed with the Commission on August 3, 

2009 a Stipulation resolving the Phase I issues described in paragraph 1 above, including an 

agreement that Rocky Mountain Power’s DSM tariff rider should be increased to an average rate 

of 4.6%, effective September 1, 2009.   

 5. In their initial protests, UAE and UIEC raised a number of issues the parties 

agreed to defer for potential consideration during Phase II.  In its filing, UIEC requested that the 

Commission: (1) consider proposals for an appropriate DSM tariff rider opt out provision; (2) 

review the cost effectiveness of the Company’s present DSM programs; and (3) examine the 

prudency of the Company’s decision to continue offering DSM programs in the face of changing 

load and price characteristics. In its Protest, UAE requested that the Commission: (1) conduct a 

review of existing and planned DSM programs, including the cost-effectiveness and appropriate 

spending caps for each program; and (2) conduct a thorough review of and appropriate 

adjustments to the DSM cost recovery mechanisms and associated procedures. 



 6. Rocky Mountain Power believes that UAE’s and UIEC’s proposals to review the 

cost effectiveness of the Company’s existing DSM programs are unwarranted and should not be 

addressed in Phase II. The Commission has existing guidelines in place which are used in 

determining the cost effectiveness of the Company’s DSM programs.1  Pursuant to those 

guidelines, all new DSM programs and modifications to existing programs proposed by the 

Company are reviewed for cost effectiveness by the Commission prior to their approval and 

implementation. If UAE and UIEC wished to challenge the cost effectiveness of the Company’s 

DSM programs, the dockets in which those programs were approved was the proper forum and 

time to do so. The Commission determined in those dockets, based on the evidence presented by 

all parties, that each of Rocky Mountain Power’s existing DSM programs were prudent and just 

and reasonable. Allowing for the review of the Company’s DSM programs in this proceeding is 

duplicative to the efforts that occurred at the time that the Commission approved the programs. 

In addition, the Company provided the cost effectiveness results of its DSM portfolio for 

calendar year 2008 in Table 2 in Advice No. 09-08. As demonstrated in this table, the 

Company’s DSM portfolio for 2008 was demonstrated to be cost effective by each test 

prescribed under the Commission approved DSM evaluation guidelines. Furthermore, the 

Company has agreed to provide on an ongoing basis DSM cost effectiveness results on a 

portfolio and program level in an annual report on Utah DSM program performance to be filed 

with the Commission and provided to the DSM Advisory Group each March 31 following the 

calendar year reporting period.   

7. On April 27, 2009, the Company filed proposed revisions to the cost effectiveness 

guidelines established in Docket No. 92-2035-04, pursuant to the Commission’s order in Docket 

                                                           
1 See Docket No. 92-2035-04 



No. 07-035-T04.2  The proposed revisions represent a collaborative effort of the Utah DSM 

Advisory Group. If the Commission determines that further review of the cost effectiveness 

guidelines are appropriate, the Company believes the review should take place as part of Docket 

No. 07-035-T04.  

 8. Because Rocky Mountain Power remains in a resource deficit position, the 

Company believes it is prudent to acquire cost effective DSM resources. While we understand 

that caps on costs or participation can control short-term program expenses, such caps will limit 

the amount of cost effective DSM load and energy reductions the Company will be able to 

acquire.  Further, limiting the amount of cost effective DSM that the Company is able to acquire 

will challenge the Company’s ability to achieve the energy efficiency goals for the State of Utah 

set forth in the Executive Order entitled Improving Energy Efficiency signed by Governor Jon 

Huntsman on May 30, 2006, which states it is the policy of the State of Utah to increase energy 

efficiency by 20% by 2015, and in the Joint Resolution on Cost Effective Energy Efficiency and 

Utility Demand Side Management enacted in the 2009 Legislative Session in which the 

Legislature expressed support for cost effective energy efficiency and load management 

programs for customers of Rocky Mountain Power and encouraged the setting of an electricity 

savings goal designed to reduce projected electric sales of Rocky Mountain Power by an amount 

equal to not less than 1 percent of its annual retail sales.  

 9. Rocky Mountain Power believes also that UIEC’s proposal to examine the 

prudency of the Company’s decision to continue DSM programs in the face of changing load and 

price characteristics is contrary to all direction the Company has received from the State of Utah 

and the Commission and should not be considered in Phase II of this proceeding. As referenced 

earlier in paragraph 8, the Governor of the State of Utah and the Legislature are supportive of 
                                                           
2 As of August 18, 2009, the Commission has not issued an order on the proposed revisions filed on April 27, 2009. 



cost effective energy efficiency and load management programs and setting energy efficiency 

goals for the State and the Company, of which the Company’s DSM programs are an integral 

part. Further, section 63M-4-303(1)(f) of the Utah Code states that it is the policy of the State of 

Utah to pursue energy conservation, energy efficiency, and environmental quality. And as stated 

in paragraph 8, the Company remains in a resource deficit position and believes the continued 

acquisition of cost effective DSM resources is an effective and necessary component in reducing 

the resource gap.  Finally, DSM resources are long-term in nature and require constant 

promotion and presence to ensure customer awareness and participation.  Starting and stopping 

program services and imposing caps on programs are disincentives to the customers, local 

retailers, builders, and trade associations that are all integral to the success of state and utility 

DSM programs. 

 10. In its Petition to Intervene, UIEC also requests that the Commission consider 

allowing customers the opportunity to opt-out of the Company’s DSM tariff rider in light of 

Senate Bill 202 (2008), which provides that the Commission must implement a process for the 

issuance, monitoring, accounting, transferring and use of renewable energy certificates (“REC”). 

The Company believes that consideration of this issue should be deferred to the docket to be 

designated by the Commission to consider implementation of Senate Bill 202.  

 11. Rocky Mountain Power does believe, however, that there are a number of issues 

that should be reviewed in Phase II, including:   

• Opt-Out Provisions. The Company supports a Commission review and discussion on the 

legality and equity of large customers opting out of funding the acquisition of, through 

utility programs, least cost demand side resources. As part of this discussion, the 

company supports dialogue on possible revisions to the self-direction program.  



• Recovery Mechanisms. The Company supports a review by the DSM Advisory Group of 

the current mechanism from the view of all stakeholders, while ensuring any changes 

going forward do not create utility disincentives.  In addition, the Company supports the 

review of utility performance incentives in Phase II. 

 WHEREFORE, Rocky Mountain Power respectfully requests the Commission limit 

Phase II of this proceeding to a discussion and evaluation of the issues outlined above.   

DATED: August 18, 2009. 

       Respectfully submitted, 

 

       ___________________________ 
       Mark C. Moench 
       Daniel E. Solander 
       Rocky Mountain Power 
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